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Copies of the above information
collection proposal can be obtained by
calling or writing Diana Hynek,
Departmental Paperwork Clearance
Officer, (202) 482—0266, Department of
Commerce, Room 7845, 14th and
Constitution Avenue, NW., Washington,
DC 20230 (or via the Internet at
dHynek@doc.gov).

Written comments and
recommendations for the proposed
information collection should be sent
within 30 days of publication of this
notice to David Rostker, OMB Desk
Officer, FAX number (202) 395-7285, or
David Rostker@omb.eop.gov.

Dated: February 3, 2009.

Gwellnar Banks,

Management Analyst, Office of the Chief
Information Officer.

[FR Doc. E9-2534 Filed 2—-5-09; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3510-22-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE

Submission for OMB Review;
Comment Request

The Department of Commerce will
submit to the Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) for clearance the
following proposal for collection of
information under the provisions of the
Paperwork Reduction Act (44 U.S.C.
Chapter 35).

Agency: National Oceanic and
Atmospheric Administration (NOAA).

Title: Pacific Islands Region Coral
Reef Ecosystems Permit Form.

OMB Control Number: 0648—0463.

Form Number(s): None.

Type of Request: Regular submission.

Burden Hours: 30.

Number of Respondents: 12.

Average Hours per Response: Permit
applications, 2 hours; and appeals, 3
hours.

Needs and Uses: Regulations (50 CFR
665) implementing the Fishery
Management Plan for Coral Reef
Ecosystems of the Western Pacific
Region include the establishment of a
permit requirement for any U.S. vessel
fishing for coral reef management unit
species in the designated low-use
Marine Protected Areas and open areas,
i.e., waters seaward of the inner
boundary of the U.S. Exclusive
Economic Zone in the western Pacific
region. The special permit is also
required for at-sea transshipment of
coral reef management unit species. The
permit application form provides basic
information about the permit applicant,
vessel, fishing gear and method, target
species, projected fishing effort, etc. for
use by NOAA Fisheries Service and the
Western Pacific Fishery Management

Council in determining eligibility for
permit issuance. The information is
important for understanding the nature
of the fishery and provides a link to
participants. It also aids in the
enforcement of FMP management
measures.

Affected Public: Business or other for-
profit organizations.

Frequency: Annually and on occasion.

Respondent’s Obligation: Mandatory.

OMB Desk Officer: David Rostker,
(202) 395-3897.

Copies of the above information
collection proposal can be obtained by
calling or writing Diana Hynek,
Departmental Paperwork Clearance
Officer, (202) 482—-0266, Department of
Commerce, Room 7845, 14th and
Constitution Avenue, NW., Washington,
DC 20230 (or via the Internet at
dHynek@doc.gov).

Written comments and
recommendations for the proposed
information collection should be sent
within 30 days of publication of this
notice to David Rostker, OMB Desk
Officer, FAX number (202) 395-7285, or
David Rostker@omb.eop.gov.

Dated: February 3, 2009.
Gwellnar Banks,

Management Analyst, Office of the Chief
Information Officer.

[FR Doc. E9-2535 Filed 2-5-09; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 3510-22-P

DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE
Bureau of Industry and Security

Action Affecting Export Privileges;
Islamic Republic of Iran Shipping
Lines; Tadbir Sanaat Sharif
Technology Development Center and
Icarus Marine (Pty) Ltd.

In the Matter of: Islamic Republic of Iran
Shipping Lines, No. 37, Aseman Tower,
Sayyade Shirazee Square, Pasdaran Avenue,
P.O. Box 19395-1311, Tehran, Iran; No. 37,
Corner of 7th Narenjestan, Sayad Shirazi
Square, After Noboyand Square, Pasdaran
Avenue, Tehran, Iran; Tadbir Sanaat Sharif
Technology Development Center, First Floor,
No. 25, Shahid Siadat Boulevard, North
Zanjan Street, Yadegar Emam Highway,
Tehran, Iran; Icarus Marine (Pty) Ltd., 1 River
Street, Rosebank, Cape Town, South Africa;
Respondents.

Order Temporarily Denying Export
Privileges

Pursuant to Section 766.24 of the
Export Administration Regulations
(“EAR” or “Regulations”),! the Bureau

1The EAR is currently codified at 15 CFR parts
730-774 (2008), as amended. The EAR issued under
the Export Administration Act of 1979, as amended
(50 U.S.C. app. 2401-2420 (2000)) (“EAA”). Since

of Industry and Security (“BIS”), U.S.
Department of Commerce, through its
Office of Export Enforcement (“OEE”),
has requested that I issue an Order
temporarily denying for 180 days the
export privileges under the EAR of:

(1) Islamic Republic of Iran Shipping
Lines, No. 37 Aseman Tower, Sayyade
Shirazee Square, Pasdaran Avenue, P.O.
Box 19395-1311, Tehran, Iran; No. 37,
Corner of 7th Narenjestan, Sayad Shirazi
Square, After Noboyand Square,
Pasdaran Avenue, Tehran, Iran
(hereinafter referred to as “IRISL”).

(2) Tadbir Sanaat Sharif Technology
Development Center, First Floor, No. 25,
Shahid Siadat Boulevard, North Zanjan
Street, Yadegar Emam Highway, Tehran,
Iran (hereinafter referred to as “TSS”).

(3) Icarus Marine (Pty) Ltd, 1 River
Street, Rosebank, Cape Town, South
Africa (hereinafter referred to as “Icarus
Marine”).

(IRISL, TSS, and Icarus Marine are
hereinafter collectively referred to as
“Respondents”).

Pursuant to Section 766.24(b) of the
EAR, the Assistant Secretary may issue
a TDO upon a showing by BIS that the
order is necessary in the public interest
to prevent an “imminent violation” of
the EAR. 15 CFR 766.24(b)(1). “A
violation may be ‘imminent’ either in
time or in degree of likelihood.” 15 CFR
766.24(b)(3). BIS may show “‘either that
a violation is about to occur, or that the
general circumstances of the matter
under investigation or case under
criminal or administrative charges
demonstrate a likelihood of future
violations.” Id. As to the likelihood of
future violations, BIS may show that
“the violation under investigation or
charges is significant, deliberate, covert
and/or likely to occur again, rather than
technical and negligent[.]” Id. A “lack of
information establishing the precise
time a violation may occur does not
preclude a finding that a violation is
imminent, so long as there is sufficient
reason to believe the likelihood of a
violation.” Id.

In its request, BIS has presented
evidence that the Respondents are about
to engage in conduct prohibited by the
EAR by re-exporting U.S.-origin items,
which are subject to the Regulations and
classified as Export Control
Classification Number (“ECCN”’)
8A992.f and .g, from South Africatoa
Specially Designated National (“SDN”’)

August 21, 2001, the Act has been in lapse and the
President, through Executive Order 13222 of August
17, 2001 (3 CFR, 2001 Comp. 783 (2002)), as
extended most recently by the Notice of July 23,
2008 (73 FR 43,603 (July 25, 2008)), has continued
the Regulations in effect under the International
Emergency Economic Powers Act (50 U.S.C. 1701—
1706 (2000)).
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